Berkeley Unified School District
2020 Bonar Street, The Tech Lab, Room 126
Berkeley, CA 94702

Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes
March 1, 2018 - 4:30 pm

Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 4:31 pm.

Roll Call & Establishment of Quorum
Chairperson Goldstein, Vice-Chairperson Ortiz, and Commissioner were present, and a quorum was established.

Public Comments
None.

Approval & Adoption of Agenda

Chairperson Goldstein said that if Mr. Greco does not appear, she would like to remove Item 7d.
Chairperson Goldstein made a motion to approve the agenda; Commissioner Carter seconded the motion,
Approved, 3-0

Approval of Meeting Minutes
a) January 25, 2018, Special Meeting Minutes
b) February 6, 2018, Regular Meeting Minutes
Vice-Chairperson Ortiz made a motion to approve the meeting minutes; Commissioner Carter seconded
the motion,
Approved 3-0

Consent Items
Ratification of Eligibility Lists
a) BSEP Program Specialist
b) Budget Analyst |
¢) Budget Analyst I
d) Health & Wellness Program Coordinator
e) Lead Accounts Payable Technician
f) School Bus Driver
Chairperson Goldstein asked about the delay in the exam dates for the Budget Analyst lists. Secretary
Duwel explained that the recruitments were extended due to overlap with the winter holidays.
Commissioner Carter made a motion to ratify the eligibility lists; Vice-chairperson Ortiz seconded the
motion,
Approved, 3-0



7.

Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes
March 1st, 2018 — 4:30 pm

Page | 2

Conference Items

a)

b)

Establishment of New Class of Assistant Superintendent of Business Services

Secretary Duwel reported that the Board approved the duties for this class, at their 2-7-18 meeting
because the District does not want to hire at the Deputy Director level. She advised that this role would
be classified as a Senior Manager exempt position and the Personnel Commission would recruit and
create an unranked eligibility list. Chairperson Goldstein asked about the differences in duties assigned to
this proposed class versus Deputy Director classification. Secretary Duwel explained that where the
Deputy Director oversaw several departments: Transportation, Human Resources, and Facilities, the
Assistant Superintendent will manage Business Services only. Chairperson Goldstein asked about the
salary for this position; Secretary Duwel said it would be negotiable by contract. Chairperson Goldstein
also asked about the ownership of duties that relate to Position Control. Brent Daniels, Human Resources
Director, responded that Business Services determines the allocations and positions Vice Chairperson
Ortiz made a motion to approve the Assistant Superintendent of Business services classification;
Chairperson Carter seconded the motion,

Approved 3-0

Desk Audit- School Administrative Assistant Il- M. Ferguson

Secretary Duwel reiterated her original recommendation presented at prior Personnel Commission
meetings: she concurs with (then Interim Director) Rogosin’s view that this position should not be
assigned to the high school. She recommended that changes to the level defining characteristics be made
and brought back to the Commission after discussions with the District and Union. Commissioner Carter
said that he would defer to the Director Duwel’s recommendation because she has completed the study.
Vice-Chairperson Ortiz said that he also wouid rely on the expertise of Director Duwel.

Chairperson Goldstein noted that there is a difference of opinion as to whether the position should be
assigned to the high school, and that the distribution of work in the front office seemed problematic and
would benefit from Human Resources review for skill gaps and cross-training opportunities. HR Director
Daniels said that the Principal manages the office, and that it is the responsibility of the Supervisor to
make these changes, and Human Resources typically does not intervene. He added that there appears to
be a difference of opinion as to whether there is a problem with the distribution of work in that office.
Chairperson Goldstein observed that performance management is closely tied to these issues and that
clarity on the quality of the employee’s performance of assigned tasks will be necessary.

Paula Phillips, BCCE President, commented that Ms. Ferguson is in the School Administrative Assistant ||
classification designated to work at the elementary school or middle school. She said that where a site has
more than 400 students, the School Administrative Assistant has clerical support. She voiced
disagreement with Secretary Duwel’s view that Ms. Ferguson is correctly classified because the substitute
management duties are those of a Human Resources Technician and are above and beyond the duties of
the School Administrative Assistant Il class.

President Phillips said that the high school had told BCCE that they would not make changes to the
assigned duties unless Human Resources directs them to do so. HR Director Daniels agreed to contact the
Principal and Ms. Ferguson’s supervisor to discuss this. President Phillips commented that Secretary
Duwel should consider the level of work being done by other School Administrative Assistant lIs as the
commission reviews level defining characteristics. HR Director Daniels said that he would work with BCCE
and Secretary Duwel to reconcile to the Principal’s opinion on this matter.



Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes
March 1st, 2018 - 4:30 pm

Page | 3

Commissioner Carter asked if the workload was excessive for its class. Secretary Duwel responded that
during the observation periods Ms. Ferguson was completing tasks, however the volume of tasks could
not be completed in a day. She reminded the Commission that the agenda item request was for ‘working
out of class.

President Phillips asked why Ms. Ferguson could not be classified as a School Administrative Assistant lll.
She observed that the Registrar at the high school is a backup to Ms. Ferguson, who actually handles
registration, and that the Registrar has someone to assist with her workload. Commissioner Carter
requested Secretary Duwel locate and share with the Commission the PIQ from the class study for the
employee who previously served in Ms. Ferguson’s position.

Chairperson Goldstein asked Secretary Duwel to take a look at the level defining characteristics in the
class description and facilitate Director Daniels’ discussion of this with the Berkeley High Principal, Ms.
Schweng. Ms. Ferguson said she reached out to Associate Superintendent Scuderi about this matter but
has not heard back. HR Director Daniels asked Ms. Ferguson to send him the questions that she asked
Scuderi so that HR could research and report back on the matter.

Desk Audit- School Administrative Assistant II- E. Johnson

Secretary Duwel reminded the Commission that former Interim Director Rogosin had conducted a desk
audit at Ms. Johnson’s request [on 02/23/2017]. Secretary Duwel later conducted another desk audit and
observed Ms. Johnson [on 1/11/18 and 1/23/18] at Berkeley Tech Academy. She noted that the current
student population at the school is low and that the school was recently restructured as continuation-only
program, under combined administration with the Independent Study program. She voiced disagreement
with (then Interim Director) Rogosin’s analysis that layoff rules apply because Ms. Johnson was y-rated
after the class study, however, she believes the District should have offered Ms. Johnson the School
Administrative Assistant Il vacancy at BAS when it was open.

Chairperson Goldstein asked when Berkeley Tech Academy will functionally merge with Berkeley
Independent Study. Ms. Johnson said that BTA still operates as a sole school site and they have not
received word yet on integration plans. HR Director Daniels said that the District is currently recruiting for
the sole administrator of the two programs. Secretary Duwel said that two years of gradual accretion of
duties is defined in Ed code as grounds for a re-classification, and that requesting reclassification in
August 2018 is an option for Ms. Johnson {(and Ms. Ferguson) at that time.

Ms. Johnson asserted that she cannot understand how the District could have changed her class without
her consent, and that she appreciated Director Duwel’s time in conducting the desk audit, but she does
not feel it is sufficient because she should have been classified as a School Administrative Assistant IIl.
Chairperson Goldstein asked about a Commission generated re-class review for Ms. Johnson when the
schools are merged, presumably in July at the start of the new Fiscal Year. Ms. Johnson expressed concern
about her candidacy for the next available School Administrative Assistant Il position due to rehire list
exhaustion. Chairperson Goldstein requested Secretary Duwel research School Administrative Assistant lll
rehire list extension options for Ms. Johnson.

Commissioner Carter made a motion to concur with the recommendation of the Director,

Approved, 3-0



Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes
March 1st, 2018 — 4:30 pm
Page | 4

d) Agenda Iltem Request —J. Greco
Mr. Greco explained that he has approached the Commission about the Instructional Tech- Before and
After School job description because he feels that Human Resources applies an improper interpretation to
supervision duties. He expressed concern about the de facto practice of ‘supervising a group of more
than 20 students where the class description indicates the position should monitor a maximum of 20. HR
Director Daniels responded that, similar to teachers, the fixed ratio applies to instructional activities;
however, assigned recess duty may supervise more than that number of students.
Commissioner Carter asked about the limit for student recess supervision. HR Director Daniels responded
that recess supervision limits are not explicitly defined. Mr. Greco said that HR Director Daniels’
comparison to teachers and certificated staff oversight responsibilities during the daytime activities is not
an accurate approximation to the afterschool program, particularly for the program at King Middle
School, which is largely unstructured.
Chairperson Goldstein observed that the District has a responsibility to ensure that the number of
students being supervised is reasonable for an employee and safe for all parties. President Phillips said
that if the district were to be audited, they would be out of compliance. Commissioner Carter asked what
could be done if there is a workload issue. Secretary Duwel observed that staffing issues fall to the
employer -- the District — to address. Chairperson Goldstein noted that it is within the purview of the
commission to recommend the job description be revised to clarify the afterschool supervision
expectations for structured and unstructured activities. Commissioner Carter recommended that Human
Resources observe the afterschool program at King M.S. and noted that parents had concerns about
program’s supervision overlay. Mr. Greco said that he had been asking for support for months at King
because the program lacks oversight by an Afterschool Program Specialist, and that the Principal or
Afterschool Program Supervisor have not responded to his requests for help.

8. Closed Session (2 matters)

a) Employee Discipline and Legal Matters - Government Code § 54954.5
(2017-D-01) (2017-D-02)
The Personnel Commission went into closed session at 6:42 pm.

9. Report from Closed Session
The Personnel Commission came out of closed session at 6:59 pm. Chairperson Goldstein reported that 3 days
during the third week of June, and 2 days in early July have been set aside for appeal hearings pending a go-
forward response from BCCE.

10. Reports
a) Union

President Phillips expressed concerned about the probationary period applied to certain part time new-
hires. She said one of her members has been on probation for two years due to the District’s conservative
interpretation of the merit rules. She hopes that the Union, the District, and the Commission can work
together to facilitate a timelier probation period for such employees.

President Phillips said the Commission had erred in using the Lead Maintenance Engineer list to certify an
employee to fill the Maintenance Engineer vacancy.



11.

12.

13.

Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes
March 1st, 2018 —4:30 pm
Page | 7

b) District Reports
HR Director Daniels said he will follow up with the Union on the probationary period issue outlined in the
Union’s report.

c) Commissioners Reports
Chairperson Goldstein advised that she will conduct office hours on March 14" from 8am-9pm.

d) Personnel Director
Secretary Duwel reviewed the new-hire and testing information for February. She advised that, going
forward, the Classified Service office would play a more significant role in the monthly new-hire
orientations.

Public Comments
President Phillips said that the School Bus Driver has five eligible candidates on the list and that’s good news.

Next Meeting
The next regular meeting is scheduled for April 10, 2018, at 1:00 pm.

Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned at 7:02 pm.

Respectfully Submitted,

Vi —<— H/{/!‘/

Patricia Duwel Date
Secretary, Personnel Commission

Approved,

/X 4-16~4%

Heidi }Soldstem Date
Chairperson, Personnel Commission






